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OEDEES QF EEFEEENCE.

Extracts from the Journals of the Souse of Representatives.
Feiday, the 17th dat of Juse, 1870.

Ordered, That a Select Committee be appointed to examine into and report upon questions relating to the Public
Accounts; the said Committee to consist of Mr. Curtis, the Hon. Mr. Fitzherbert, Mr. G-illies,Mr. Kelly, Mr. Macffarlane,
Mr. Peacock, the Hon. Mr. Stafford, and Mr. Stoven3.

A true extract,
(On motion of the Hon. Mr. Vogel.) F. E. Campbell, Clerk,House of Representatives.

Tuesday, the 21st bat op June, 1870.
Ordered, That the names of the Hon. Mr. Hall and the Moverbe added to the Committee on Public Accounts, and

that five be the quorum ofthe Committee.
A true extract,

(On motion of the Hon. Mr. Vogel.) F. E. Campbell, Clerk, House ofRepresentatives.

Fbiday, the 24th day or June, 1870.
Ordered,That the Committee on Public Accounts have power to call for persons, papers,and records.

A true extract,
(On motion of the Hon. Mr. Vogel.) F. E. Campbell, Clerk,House of Representatives.

Tuesday, the sth day of July, 1870.
Ordered, That the duties of the Committee on Public Accounts be defined as follows :—1. That in addition to the work of dealing with any special references which may be made to it by this House, it shall

be within the functions of the Committeeon Public Accounts—
(a.) To examine annually the Accounts of the Receipts and Expenditureof the Colony, and to bring under the

notice of thisHouse any items in those Accounts, or any circumstances connected with them, to which it may
consider the attention of this House should be directed.

(&.) To report to this House any alteration which may appear to the Committee desirable to be introduced in the
form of the Public Accounts, or in the mode of receipt, control, issue, or payment of the Public Money, or
in the form of the Estimates, or AppropriationAct.

(o.) To inquire into and report upon any differences which may arise, or have arisen during the preceding year,
between the Treasury and Controller, and the Treasury and Auditor-Grenera].

((?.) To inquire and report upon any differences arising between the Treasury and the Government of any
Province or Count}' respecting the Accounts between the Colony and the Province, or of any charges made
therein.

2. That whenany references mentioned in the previous sub-sections are made to the Committee, the actual points of
reference upon which the opinion of the Committee is sought should be clearly and definitely expressed.

3. That the Committee should refrain from dealing with questionsof a political nature
A true extract,

(On motion of the Hon. Mr. Vogel.) F. E. Campbell, Clerk, House ofRepresentatives.

Feiday, the Bth day op July, 1870.
Ordered,That the following be added to section 1 of the resolutions defining the duties of the Committee on Public

Accounts :—
(c.) To inquire into any questionreferred to it directly by the Treasury.

A true extract,
(On motion of the Hon. Mr. Vogel.) F. E. Campbell, Clerk,House of Representatives.

Tuesday, the 16th day of Aug-ust, 1870.
Ordered,That the quorum on the Public Accounts Committee bo reduced from five members to three members for

the remainder of the Session.
A true extract,

(On motion of the Hon. Mr. Fitzherbert.) F. E. Campbell, Clerk,House of Representatives.
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Toue Committee have had two letters referred to them from the Superintendent of Otago, claiming
reimbursement from the Colony of the amount expended by the Provincial Government on the
Geological Survey of that Province. In one of these letters the Superintendent also requests that
directions may be issued to Dr. Hector to the effect that the " Geological Survey of Otago maybe
completed according to the terms of his agreement."

Tour Committee, having examined the Superintendentof Otago, the Hon. Captain Eraser (formerly
Deputy Superintendent of that Province), and Dr. Hector, and having had before them the agreement
between Dr. Hector and the Agents in Scotland of the Provincial Government of Otago, together with
other documents, beg leave to report as follows:—

1. An agreement was entered into in Edinburgh, in December 1861, between Dr. Hector and the
Agents of the Otago Government. The first article of this agreementprovides, " That the Said James
Hector shall devote his whole time and capabilities in making and bringing, to a completion, and
furnishing the said Superintendent and Provincial Council with, an accurate Geological Survey of the
said Province, and shall deliver the same, with all necessary plans, sections, and others, to the said
Province of Otago ; said engagementto continue for the period of three yearsfrom and after the Ist
day of January, in the year 1862, and he shall from time to time, as he may be required, furnish to the
said Superintendent reports of his proceedings, it being declared that the said James Hector shall be
allowed to conduct his examination of the Province in any manner he may deem best suited for a
scientific geological reeonnoisance, subject however to the approval of the said Council and Superinten-
dent in the matter of expenses; and the said James Hector shall also bo entitled to publish the results
ofhis investigation for general, scientific,or geologicalpurposes : " and the fifth articlestipulates," That
the said James Hector shall furnish, at the completion of the survey, specimens of all minerals
descriptive of the results of the investigation made in virtue hereof, and of the minoralogical formation
of the Province."

2. In pursuance of this agreement, Dr. Hector left England in December, 1861, arrived in Otago
on the 13th April, 1862, and remained in the service of the Provincial Government until the Ist of
April, 1865. It is admitted on all hands that, during the period of his residence in Otago,, the whole
of his time was devoted to the service of the Province. The manner in which he was occupied is fully
stated in the annexed memorandum.

3. When ho left the service of the Provincial Government he entered that of the Colonial
Government, and has since been engaged in the Geological Survey of the Colony at large. Both Dr.
Hector and other members of the Geological Stafi' have occasionally been engaged in the Provinces of
Otago and Southland. It is not alleged that any objection was raised by the Provincial Government
to Dr. Hector's resignation : theperiod of service stipulated in his agreement had expired.

4. With respect to the amount of moneywhich the Province of Otago has actually expended on
the Geological Survey, the statements laid before your Committee are conflicting. An account
furnished by the Superintendentputs the amount at £13,890 17s. It seems probable, however, from an
inspection of the account itself, as well as from a memorandum furnished by Dr. Hector, that the
£13,890 17s. includes disbursementsnot fairly chargeable against the GeologicalSurvey ; for instance,
an item for buildings, £1,287 ss. 4d., can hardly be so chargeable. In the event, therefore, of any
adjustment of account between the Colony and the Province for this outlay taking place, a statement
in detail of the items of which this account is composed would have to be furnished.

5. As the Superintendent, in the letter in which he transmits copy of the agreement with Dr.
Hector, requests that that gentleman may bo directed to complete the Geological Survey of Otago,
"in terms of his agreement," your Committee have directed their attention to this question. The
agreement provides, " That the said James Hector shall devote his whole time and capabilities in
making and bringing to a completion, and furnishing the said Superintendent and Provincial Council
with, an accurate Geological Survey of the said Province, and shall deliver the same, with all necessary
plans, sections, and others,to the said Superintendentof the said Province of Otago ; said engagement to
continue for the period of three years from and after the Ist day of January, in theyear 1862; and he
shall from time to time, as he may be required, furnish to the said Superintendent reports of his
proceedings, it being declared that the said James Hector shall be allowed to conduct his examination
of the Province in anymanner he may deem best suitedfor a scientific geological reeonnoisance, subject
however to the approval of the said Council and Superintendent in the matter of expenses ; and the
said James Hector shall also be entitled to publish the results of his investigations for general,
scientific, or geological purposes." The question raised by the Superintendent is whether this part of
the agreement has been carried out.

The statements of the results of his labours, which Dr. Hector actually has furnished to the Pro-
vincial Government, appearto be as follows :■—1. 27th August, 1862.—Report relative to the distribution of Gold in the Province.—

(Published.)
2. 25th September, 1862.—Progress Eeport.—(Published.)
3. April, 1863.—Eeport offirst Expedition to West Coast.—(Published in newspaper.)
4. Bth June, 1863.—Progress Eeport of West Coast Expedition.—(Published.)
5. sth November, 1863.—Eeport of second West Coast Expedition.—(Published.)

Vide Appendix,
p. 15,No. 4.
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6. 13thApril, 1864.—Progress Report, with full details respecting the minerals, coals, fossils,
plants, &c, which had been discovered up to date.—(Published.)

7. 21st October, 1864.—Progress Report.— (Published.)
8. Various official Letters.—(Published in newspapers.)
9. January, 1865.—Descriptive Catalogueof Geologicaland other CollectionsintheExhibition.

10. sth Eebruary, 1866.—Various Papers in the Jurors' Reports,and Supplement to Class 1.,
which gives minuteaccount of mineral and other natural productions of the Colony then
known, and especially of those in Otago.

11. April, 1865.—Geological Map of the Province of Otago—scale, 8 miles to mch—showing
results ofreconnoisance survey up to date, and giving a large amount of original topogra-
phical details. This mapwas specially compiled for the geological survey, as, at that time,
no complete topographical map of the Province was in existence. (Unpublished.)

12. Map of the North-west District of the Province, showing the surface configuration, with
special relation to the opening of communication with the land fitted for settlement on
the West Coast.—(Unpublished.)

13. Ten Geological Sections, illustrating the structure of the Province.—(Unpublished.)
14. Seventeenlarge Sketches and Views, illustrativeof the geological features of Otago scenery.

(Unpublished.)
In addition to the above, an extensive collection in everybranch of natural history within the Pro-

vince was made by the Geological Staff, has been arranged by Dr. Hector, and is now deposited and
displayed in the Museum at Dunedin. This collection is admitted to be exceedingly valuable, as illus-
trating the geological and other resources of the Province.

Tour Committee are informed that the Geological Survey Staff of the United Kingdom, pro-
ceeding on the assumption that the results of a geological survey can be reported better in a geological
map than in a writtenreport, do not, as arule, furnish any otherreport of their labours than a mapof
this description, with marginal notes.

Tour Committee are of opinion,after a consideration of the above facts, that Dr. Hector cannot
be said to have failed to carry out his agreement with the Otago Government.

It is stated by Dr. Hector that he has not, during the time he was in the service of theProvincial
Government, or, with one exception, since he left it in 1865,been asked for any other report than those
above enumerated. Subsequently, however, to the abovedate, he forwarded to the Provincial Govern-
ment the sketch of a further report of the results of his labours in Otago, which it was his intention
to furnish, and this report was asked for in October, 1865. A considerable portion of the information
intended to be includedin that report has since been published in other documents, and it will be
seenfrom the memorandum (A), that Dr. Hector believesit willbe for the interest of the Province
that his final report should be deferreduntil further field investigations in other parts of the Colony
have been completed.

6. With regard to the general question of the claimsnowmade on behalf of theProvince of Otago,
it appears to your Committee, upon a careful consideration of the evidence taken by and the documents
submitted to them, of the value of the maps supplied, and of the mineralogical and othercollections
made by Dr. Hector, as well as of the information obtained by him as to the resources of the Pro-
vince, and particularly of the westernportion of it, that the Province of Otago has received full value
for the sum expendedon the Geological Survey. This conclusion still,however, leaves open the question
whether, as the Geological Survey of other parts of New Zealand is nowbeing completed at the cost of
the Colony, some allowanceshould not be made to Otago on account of that portion of the general
work which has beendone at her expense.

7. Tour Committee respectfully submit that this question is not one which can be settled by the
application of any principles already laid down by the Legislature for the adjustment of the
financial relations of the Colony and theProvinces, and that it is, therefore,not oneforyour Committee
to determine. They conceive that they can best discharge their duty, in the present instance, by
submitting, as they haveendeavouredto do in this report, such a statement of the facts and circumstances
of the case as will enable the Legislature to arrive, without difficulty, at a fair and just conclusion.

8. They think itright to point out if an allowance is made, for the reasons above stated, to the
Province of Otago, claimsfrom other Provinces for similar services willhave to be entertained.

9. Your Committee append to thisreport minutes of the evidence takenby them, as well as various
memoranda bearing on the subject of this inquiry.

Jons Hail,
7th September, 1780. Acting Chairman.

Papers appended to Interim 'Report of the Public Accounts Committee, datedSeptember, 1870.
1. Evidence of His Honor James Macandrew.
2. „ The Hon. Captain Fraser.
3. „ Dr. Hector.
4. Letter from His Honor James Macandrew, to the Colonial Treasurer, dated27th July, 1870.
5. Letter from His Honor James Macandrew, dated 9th August, 1870, enclosing copy of

Agreement with Dr. Hector.
6. Memorandum from Deputy Superintendent of Otago, containing statement of expenditure, on

account of Geological Survey, by Province ofOtago.
7. Memorandumby Dr. Hector, concerning the Geological Survey of Otago.
8. Remarks on theAccount of Expenditure forwarded by the Provincial Government.
9. List ofReports, Maps, &c, furnished by Dr. Hector to the Provincial Government of Otago.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.

Mr. Macandrew in attendance, and examined.
(References from Mr. Macandrew to the Colonial Treasurer, relative to the claim of a refund of

£13,000 paid for Dr. Hector's Geological Survey of the Province of Otago, having been read),
1. Mr. Hall.] What is the amount of your claim?—About £13,000. I think that is rather over

the actual expenditure.
2. Have you got an account of this expenditure ?—I cannotproduce the account. I have not got

it with me.
3. Is it in Wellington ?—No ; I have not got thefull particulars. I have got an account in round

numbers.
4. Chairman.'] Youcannot give us any of the items ?—I have not got an account ofall the items.
5. Could they be telegraphed for ?—Yes ; I can telegraph for them. I telegraphedfor the gross

amount.
6. Mr. Hall.] Can you, at the present time, give the Committee any idea as to how this

£13,000 was expended. It seems a large sum? —There is Dr. Hector's salary.
7. That is £700 ?—Yes, I think it is. There were also the expenses ofhis outfit.
8. Chairman.] There were also his assistant's ?—Yes ; himself and his assistant were brought out

from home. There is also his trip to the West Coast. He had a vessel at his disposal, Ido not know
for how many months.

9. Mr. Hall.'] The salary of Dr. Hector, I think, is here (referring to a document) put down at
£800 ?—Yes ; andI think his assistant'swas £300 ; but I think it wouldbe betterthat I should furnish a
full account.

10. The period ofhis agreement was for threeyears ?—I think it was fully three years.
11. Not more?—Not more.
12. When did he come here?—In December, 1861, I think.
13. Chairman.] He came to Wellington in 18G5?—Well, he must have been over three years.
14. Mr. Hall.] Then there was his outfit ?—Yes.
15. Chairman.] He had a schooner, you say, on the West Coast ?—That would be a very material

amount,as he was accompanied by I do not know how many men, tents, and horses, and you can easily
Bee how the amount would run up, especially paying men, in those days, 12s. and 14s. a day for wages.

10. Mr. Hall.] Did Iunderstand you to pay for the expedition as partof the Geological Survey?—
I consider it was part of the Geological Survey.

17. Was it not rather an exploring expedition?—It was with a view ofascertaining the geological
resources of the country.

18. Has Dr. Hector furnished a report of that expedition ?—There is a report of his journey,but
do geological report that I am aware of.

19. Could you give the Committee some idea of what Dr. Hector has done for this £13,000 ?—Well, nearly the principal portion of the work he has done consists of a very valuable collection of
minerals.

20. Where are they?—-Thoy are in the Museum of Otago. Of course there arc duplicates of them
here, in this Museum.

21. Mr. Stevens.] Is it not a fact, as I apprehend, that Dr. Hector's fieldbook would show that
he did more work than collecting minerals,—that therewere other results ?—The practical proof of the
value of what he has done may be found in the circumstance that theProvincial Government of Otago
is now in treaty with the Government of Victoria for a geologist to come down and complete the
survey. The Provincial Governmentis now contemplating an expenditure of £2,000 for the purpose
of completing what Dr. Hector undertook to do by this agreement,

22. Chairman.] For completing the survey ? —For reporting, in fact.
23. The Committeeunderstand this, that the Province of Otago considers thework already done,

although incomplete, so valuable, that they are desirous of having it completed by some other means ?—
I do not know that Dr. Hector's workwould be of any value to this geologist who is coming over.

24. If done well so far, then you cannot but attach a value to it, and think it would be well to
expend more money to complete it?—I think that Dr. Hector's services would be of some avail.

25. Mr. Hall.] Who is the geologist you are about employing ? —Mr. Ulrich, who is very highly
spoken of in Mr. Brough Smythe's excellent work on the gold mines ofVictoria.

26. What position does he occupy?—He is on the GeologicalStaff of Victoria. If yourefer to
Mr. Smythe's valuablework, you will find him veryhighly spokenof. If I had known what you wanted,
Iwould have put my evidence in writing.

27. What we want to ask you is, can you tell what Dr. Hector has furnished in the way of
reports?—No, I cannot tell. All I can tellis, that there is no official report in the terms of the agree-
ment,—no report of any practical utility, so far as a geologicalknowledge of the Province is concerned.
It is with a view of procuring such a report we are going into the expenditure.

28. Are you in a position to say that ?—That is my opinion: you will getplenty of evidence
to the same effect. Iwould suggest that you should call more witnesses who would be better able to
speak from a geological point of view than I can. The Hon. Captain Fraser is, I believe, a geologist,
and he can give evidence on the subject.

2
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29. Does he know ?—He has a better idea of whatDr. Hector has done. I think you would get
more information from him than from me as to the actual work that he has done.

30. So much with regard to reports ; nowwith regard to maps. Has he furnished any maps?—I
am not aware that he has furnished any to the Province of Otago.

81. Are you aware whether Dr. Hector, during the period of his engagement in Otago, had been
put upon any special works that would have interfered with his survey ?—I am not aware. I think he
was entirely his own master.

32. ?—I dare say Major Eichardson could give evidence upon that point.
Mr. Haughton and other gentlemen know a good deal of the practical results ? They will know the
common feeling amongst the mining population on the subject.

33. Mr. Hall.] We want facts, not what they could say. You say that the work has not led to
the discovery of the gold fields ?—Of course he cannot be blamed for that. I believe it has not led
to the discovery of gold fields ; on the contrary.

34. Youwere speaking ofnoreport having been furnished. Are you aware whether there has been
any application made for such a report ?—I am not aware.

35. By the Province of Otago?—I am not aware. I think it is very likely that there has been,
but I am not conscious of it.

36. Of your own knowledge you are not aware whether any ajiplication has been made?—The
subject has been frequently talked of in the Provincial Council.

37. You have not, since you have been Superintendent of the Province, made any application to
him ?—No.

38. Can you state under what circumstances Dr. Hector left the service of the Province?—l
cannot say.

39. You do notknow whether he resigned or was transferred?—I do not know.
40. Mr. Macffarlane.]—"Who would know that?—Mr. Harris. Mr. Balfour was translated or

removed about the same time.
41. Mr. Hall.] —Is that all ?—I desireto lay special stress upon the fact of having to engage this

Mr. Ulrich. The reason why he is not at work at present is because it is the wrong season.
42. Can you tell the Committee why it is necessary that you should engage Mr. Ulrich ?—I can

only state that we are ignorant of the geological resources of the country from a professional point of
view.

43. Would it not be more prudent to apply to Dr. Hector for a report before engaging this
geologist ?—I think it is very likely we should be bettersatisfied with a report from another party.

44. Prom some one else ?—Yes ; I know that the impression is that we would be more satisfiedby
having areport of that person to whom I refer, from Victoria, Mr. Ulrich. It is believed that he is
practically conversant with the geological features of the country.

45. Do you mean as regards gold digging alone?—I mean gold digging. I may mention one
reason why we are so anxious. Wo intend spending money in making reservoirs and water-races, and
we must be guidedby the geological indications as to where the gold is likely to be permanent.

46. Mr. Macffarlane..] I have seen a map, by Dr. Hector, of your Province. There is a map here
of his survey. I have seen one with gold, silver,and coal indications marked. I understood it was
part of the public property ?—Well, I have not got it.

47. If you applied you could get a copy ?—I am not aware.
48. Mr. Hall.'] What salary do you propose to give Mr. Ulrich ?—So much a week. I expect it

will cost, including assistants, £2,000.
49. Chairman.~\ When Mr. Selwyn was geologist of Victoria I think it was £5,000 ?—ltwas done

by contract; he paid for the men and assistants.
50. Mr. Macffarlane.] (Map produced by Clerk of Committee.) That is not the map I referred to ;

the one I spoke of had marked the indication of gold and silver. {To Witness.) Your contract
originally was for three years?—Yes.

51. Was he fully occupied with you the whole of the time ?—Yes.
52. Did he do anything for himself?—He did nothing for himself.
53. Was he exclusively occupied in the work of his department ?—Yes.
54. Was it from any fault of his that the survey was not completed in three years ?—On that

I cannot express an opinion.
55. You must come up to that point ?—I believe ho was occupied all the time; whether from any

fault ofhis the survey was not completed I cannot say.
56. Youhave no fault to find ?—I have no fault to find. All I complain of is, that we have not

got the report for which we stipulated.
57. Did you get an interim report ?—I do not know ofany report. Ibelieve, in the " Proceedings

of the New Zealand Exhibition," you will find certain statements of Dr. Hector, but they are of a
desultory character.

58. Chairman.'] Was it with the assent of the provincial authorities of Otago that Dr. Hector left
the service of the Province ?—That I am not aware of, but it can be easily ascertained.

59. Mr. Macffarlane.] Did he give the requisite notice, according to the terms of his agreement?
—That I do not know.

60. How long was he with you ?—He must have been three or four years.
61. Was he only to remain three years, finished or not finished ?—I take it that under that con-

tract ho was bound to supply us with a report in three years.
62. But if he couldnot do it ?—I imagine that hewas bound under the agreement. You canread it.
63. I have read the agreement, and that is why I ask the question. He was bound to give you

six weeks' notice at theend of the three years. There is only a clause of a preferential claim to his
services against any other Province. Do you notknow whether he gave thatnotice : whether he asked
to continue, and you refused to do so ?—He willbe able to answer that himself. If it is necessary, I
can obtain information as to the circumstancesunder which he left the service.
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64. Will the survey which Dr. Hector has so far made dovetail in with the general survey of the
Colony?—I should say so ; I think it would be of very little value if it does not. We are bound to
think his services as valuable there as elsewhere.

65. Prom theway you express yourself are we to understand that, practically, except the Museum,
his work is valueless ?—Unless he completes it.

66. I do not think you have made out a claim ?—lt is hard that we should have to pay one-third
towards the general survey of the Colony after paying what we did.

67. Chairman.] I take it that what you mean is this: that if we are to have a geological survey
of the Colony, you are not to be asked to pay your contingent of the whole without having arefund of
the amount expended?—Yes, I think it is but reasonable; or to let us have the completion of the
thing as a test of whether the past work has been useful.

68. Dr. Hector was only to work for you whilewith you. You have no right to ask him to work
after the three years ?—You willfind that he was bound to give us a report at the end of his engage-
ment, according to his agreement.

69. Mr. Stevens.] Do you consider that it would bo right that the Colony should refund to the
Province of Otago the expense of the survey, and, at the same time, that the Province of Otago should
have Dr. Hector's survey completed under the present financial arrangements?—The Province claims
to be refunded because Dr. Hector did not complete his survey. They are now making arrange-
ments to finish that survey,but I wouldbe quite content that it should be finished by Dr. Hector. Of
course, it must be finished by him, or under his control, if it is to form part of the general survey.

70. Would that interfere with the arrangement made by the Provincial Council with Mr. Ulrich ?■—I do not think so, as it can be receded from.
71. Mr. Macffarlane?^ Did Dr. Hector leave his assistants with you?—No, I think not. I think

the whole establishment ceased with his leaving.
72. And has nothing since been done to complete the survey which he began ?—No.
73. Did Dr. Hector supply any specimens of minerals during his survey ?—Yes, a very valuable

collection, half of which, or rather duplicates of which, are in the Colonial Museum here.
74. Mr. llall.~\ Did Dr. Hector go down to Otago to arrange the Museum there, after he had left

the service of the Province?—I think not. I think he did at the Exhibition, but not since then;
Captain Eraser will be able to explain, as he is Chairman of the Geological Society there.

75. Has Dr. Hector told you that he must complete a survey of the Colony before he could give
you a report of your Province, and that upon the completion of the survey he would give you a map?■—I am not aware. About the arrangementof the specimens of the minerals, I think it has cost about
£400 to the Province to put them as they are now.

76. Do you mean the cost of arranging?—Arranging andclassifying them, and the cost of cases.
I know that Dr. Hector was in Otago a few days, but I would not be sure whether he gave any
assistanceor not.

77. That was the other day ?—I know he was not there except for a day or two ?
78. Chairman.'] Were you asked why Dr. Hector left the Province ?—I do not know; I can

send down and get theparticulars.
79. Do you consider the Minoralogical Museum at Otago of value,and if so, of what value?—Itwould

be impossible for me to say. I believe it is of great value, but I cannot say of what value. Of what-
ever value the specimens may be, the Colony has got the benefit of them as well as the Museum hero.

80. Will you please get'the particulars of this £13,000, and how far the assent of the provincial
authorities was given to Dr. Hector being removed to the service of the General Government pending
the non-completion of his work' ?—I shall got those particulars.

Captain Eraser in attendance, and examined.
i 81. Mr. Sail.'] You were Deputy Superintendent of the Province of Otago for three years?—
Yes.

82. And also connected with the Geological Museum ?—Yes.
83. Are you conversant with the circumstances under which Dr. Hector was engaged by the

Province of Otago ?—No ; I have no particular cognizance of the circumstances, further than that I
.am aware, from common report, that the Provincial. Governmentwent to the expense of bringing out
Dr. Hector and employing him at a cost of £13,000 to theProvince.

84. We have been given to understandthat you can give the Committee correct information in
regard to the general character of Dr. Hector's work?— Well, so far as the Museum is concerned, he
has done a great deal. We have specimens of all the geological formations of Otago. I may say that,
with a few exceptions, the whole collection of our Museum is due to Dr. Hector. But what we prin-
cipally wanted was areport of his work, and that I believe we have not got.

85. A report of his proceedings?—A full report upon the geology of the Province; that is,
explaining the geological formation of it.

86. Do you know what Dr. Hector has done, and how long he was there?—l cannot tell, as I was
absent from the Province for some time.

87. We have been told thatyou could give us better information as to what he has done ?—I may
say that what he has done will be found more in theProceedings of the Eoyal Geological Society in
England than in Otago. 1 made inquiries of a similar nature in Victoria when Mr. Selwyn
was in charge of the Geological Department there. I inquired where his report could be found, but I
could find no trace of it, except in the Proceedings of the Geological Society. I except his very
admirable geological maps. It appears to me that these gentlemen write more for the information of
people at home than for the people of these countries.

88. Do you know whetherhe has furnished any report to the Provincial Government?—I am not
awarethat he has furnished any report; Iknow that thatis thecomplaint. I only knowthat the Otago
people complain thatnoreport has beenfurnished. Infact, it was statedthe other day, in the Provincial
Council, that they had entered into a contract with Dr. Hector, and that he was bound, in a penaltyof
£500, to supply a report which ho has not given.
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89. Is that your own experience, or is it from information you speak?—I heard the Provincial
Treasurer make the statement in the Provincial Council.

90. Do you happen to know how many specimens you have ?—lt would be impossible to say
accurately. There are several thousands.

91. 'Chairman."] Are they valuable?—Very valuable, and quite sufficient for any professor to
lecture upon. There are not only geological specimens but sections from deep sinking and auriferous
drifts. These are all in cases, showing thepeculiarities of the various auriferous drifts.

92. Do you happen to know, Captain Eraser, whether Dr. Hector was taken off the survey, at the
instance of the Provincial Government, and put to other work ?—I am not aware ; I was absent from
the country.

93. Do you remember the expedition to Martin's Bay ?—Perfectly well. I found in England, in
the Bank of New Zealand, aroom in which there were maps of Martin's Bay. I expected, when I
came back, to find that a settlement had taken place. I believe it was the jealousy which existed in
some of our departments that prevented it. Owing to that jealousy, no steps were taken until Mr.
Macandrew forced it the other day.

94. Tou mean jealousybetween the provincial departments?—Yes; the provincial departments
in Otago. I allude particularly to the department of the Chief Surveyor in Otago.

95. Was thatexpedition undertaken by the instructions of the Provincial Government?—Yes.
96. Was it done with a view to carry out Dr. Hector's duties as Geological Surveyor, or for the

purposes of general exploration ?—Both. Dr. Hector tested the country for gold as he went, and he
gave me a small map, which had been photographed from his large map, showing the different
directions in which he had found gold. He was engaged in thoroughly investigating the country,
sinking shafts in every place he went.

97. Mr. Macffarlane^] Inwhat capacity did you get that map ?—As a private individual. I found,
as I said, in aroom in the Bank of New Zealand, London, a number of largo maps. The people were
full of the subject in England, and I imagined that when I came out I would find all the land occupied,
and that I would bo unable to find a section.

98. Are you speaking of the results of the expedition to Martin'sBay ?—Yes.
99. Was that expedition with a view to settlement ?—Yes; it was entirely Dr. Hector's discovery,

I believe.
100. Chairman.] Was the object colonization?—Yes. Had it not been for some narrow-minded

jealousies the settlementwould have takenplace at the time. I may mention how far those jealousies
have gone when the name of Lake Te Kapo, so named by Dr. Hector to perpetuate the name of a rare
bird, has been changed by our SurveyDepartment, which has called it Lake McKerrow, after a surveyor
who never, I believe, saw the lake.

101. Mr. Manffarlane.] Did Dr. Hector make a special report upon that visit ?—Yes.
102. Mr. Sail.] Did he make any other reports ?—There were various special reports, but no

generalreport.
103. Mr. Marfarlane.] Those special reports you mean to refer to certain districts ?—Yes ; and

portions of districts.
101. Mr. Hall.] Are you aware that since Dr. Hector has joined the service of the General

Government he has been to Dunedin to arrange those specimens?—Yes. I was very glad to see him
there, and ho was kind enough to take great trouble to re-arrange the specimens. Wo are notperfect
mineralogists down there. Dr. Hector was there for several days working hard re-arranging the
specimens.

105. How long ago is that ?—About six months ago. We have specimens there that are not in
the Colonial Museum. Wherever duplicates couldbe had Dr. Hector availed himself of them.

106. Mr. Macandrew said that therewere duplicates of all the specimens in the ColonialMuseum ?
—It is quite likely that there would bo sufficient to send duplicates out of the country as all our
specimens were large, and Dr. Hector was obliged to make them smaller. Iknow we had some very
valuable specimens, and he took some duplicates away with him. There were specimens containing
native mercury so rich that if jrou took the stone and broke it, the globules would beleft in your hand.
The specimens, I think, were found at Post Office Creek, Waipori, so Dr. Hector informs me. I may
say that we have got one very valuable map of Otago, made by Dr. Hector. It is a geological map,
and is nowin our Museum.

107. Chairman.] Did you consider it dear ?—I did not consider it was dear at any price. I have
often said " That map has cost £13,000."

108. Mr. Hall.] Do you know anything about Mr. Ulrich ?—We found that wo should have a
geological report of our gold fields. We know that we have very large auriferous deposits in many
directions, and we did not appear to be able to avail ourselves of Dr. Hector's services, so we wrote to
the Colonial Secretaryof Victoria, asking him to recommend to us a practical first-class geologist—one
with practical knowledge, not a mere theorist—because we wanted to have a geological report of the
resources of our gold fields.

109. Chairman.] That is to say, that, having a view to theroom that there is for population, you
wish the resources of your country to beknown ?—No ; discovered.

110. What I mean to say is, whether it is witha viewto the completion of a great scientific work,
or with a view to attract population ?—The idea originated in this way : We came up here for the
purpose of borrowing a large sum of money for expenditure upon the gold fields, ancl it was thought
requisite, before we went into this expenditure, that we should have some practical report upon the
resources of the, gold fields, to be a guaranteeto the Government thatwe were not spending money in
a wrong direction.

111. Mr. Stevens.] I should wish to know whether theprimary object of Mr. Ulrich's engagement
is to complete the uncompleted survey of the Province of Otago?—That I do not know ; I am under
the impression that it is not so. We have sent for him in order that we may get a report which will
guide us in making those water-races which are necessary on the gold fields.
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112. That is your impression?'—lt is more than an impression. I may state it as a positive fact
that that was the intention.

113. Mr. Macffarlane.~\ Can that report be made from Dr. Hector's surveys ?—There are great
portions of the Province which Dr. Hector has not examined.

114. Chairman.'] Supposing that such a survey could be done for £2,000, could it be done at such
cost unless there were the materialsfor a geological map in existence?—Certainly.

115. That is, putting aside Dr. Hector's work, so far as it has gone, this could be done at the
same expense?—Yes ; he would find the miners at work in the different localities.

116. Mr. Hall.] It is a general report upon the gold fields thatyou want ?—Ofcourse ; whenDr.
Hector visited our goldfields there werevery few miners who knew anything of the system of water-
races. We have gotmoney so invested to theextent of £100,000 in water-races.

117. Mr. Stevens.] Might I ask if you are sufficientlyfamiliar with the terms of the arrangement
with Mr. Ulrich to know how he is to be remunerated ?—I am not acquainted with the arrangement in
the slightest degree ;itwas done after I was Superintendent. Iknow nothing about the arrangement.

ILB. Mr. Hall. | When is he expected ?—I do notknow. We are bound to expend money, and,
of course, it must be done underguidance."

119. I understand you to say that it is in consequence of an intention to expend money in
developing the gold fields that Mr. Ulrich has been sent for ?—That is my impression.

120. Mr. Macffarlane.] You have spoken of a map which cost the Province £13,000? —Yes;
the map and the Museum. It is an accurate Geological Survey of theProvince,but there are numerous
deposits and auriferous reefs discovered since then. It is an excellent map, but wouldrequire now to
be gone over and filled up.

121. Was it perfect at the time it was made?— Certainly. The gentleman who made it had
made what was considered the best geological survey in the world, to the north of Lake Superior,
and he could not give anything but a good map. It was in consequence of that he was recommended
by Sir Roderick Murchison.

122. Do you know whether ho was required to make this report?—No; I only know, from the
generalreports in Otago, that he had not made it.

Dr. Hector in attendance, and examined.
123. Chairman.] A claim has been made by the Superintendent of Otago for a refund of £13,000,

amount alleged to have been expended upon a Geological Survey of the Province of Otago, conducted
by you under a certain agreement? He has preferred his claim to the Colonial Treasurer, and the
matter has been referred to this Committee for investigation.

124. Mr. Hall.] How long were you in Otago ?—-I arrived in Otago on the 13th April, 1862, and
remained there, under the Provincial Government, until the Ist April, 1865. I was there a few months
longer, but working for the General Government.

125. Chairman.] You came from England ?—Yes; the date of the agreement is the date of my
embarkation.

126. What was the date of jour embarkation?—The Ist January. That would make the period
I was with the Provincial Government of Otago three years and three months.

127. Mr. Hall.] What were the circumstances under which you left the service of the Provincial
Government and entered the service of the General Government. Was it resignation or transfer ?—
The term of my agreement expired on the Ist January, but, by arrangement with the Provincial
Government, I continued until April.

128. Chairman.] Was it with the assent of the Provincial Government that you left the service of
the Province; were the authorities consenting parties ; did they put the same interpretation upon
the contract, and were theywilling that you should leave ?—I do not think I everasked them. Ido
not remember.

129. Did theyprotest against yourleaving?—Certainly not. Ireceived no protest. Thearrange-
mentrelative to my services being transferred to the General Government had been contemplated,
intimated to the Provincial Government, and agreed upon, many months previous to the expiration of
my agreement.

130. Without any objection ?—There was no objection; quite the reverse, as it was understood
that the Province would still have my services in common with the rest of the Colony.

131. With regard to the cost, Mr. Macandrew stated that the expense of the survey was £13,000.
Is that accurate?—Certainly not. Ido not know the sums expended, but I believe the actual sum
expended on the survey was £6,500. An extrasum of about £1,200 was on account ofexpenses I had
to incur in my department at the New Zealand Exhibition and on the West Coast, making a total of
£8,700. I have had no access to any accounts but those which passed through my own hands.

132. What is your opinion about the Martin's Bay expedition ?
133. Mr. Hall.] Before putting that question, I should wish to ask if you have been put on to

any other work than the Geological Survey during the time you were in the service of the Provincial
Government?—-Well, the Chief Surveyor suggested that there,shouldbe a joint survey, conducted by
him and myself,on the West Coast of the country, and that occupied mo a very long time. Of course,
I gave my attentionto every kind of observation that would be useful to the Province, but the Chief
Surveyor did not accompany me. I was without any assistance from the SurveyDepartment, andaway
for eight months under circumstances of great privation. I dare say I did a good deal of work not
strictly necessary for a geological survey, but I brought back large collections from that expedition,
which were useful in establishing the geologicalcharacter of the country. That might have been giving
to that part of the country a greater amount of attention out of three years than it was, perhaps,,
entitled to.

134. Was the main object of it a geological or topographical survey ?—Geological survey ; but
there were large additions made to the topographicalknowledge of the country.

135. Were you in charge?—Yes.
3
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136. Were there any officers of the Survey Department with you, as it was to be a jointsurvey ?—
No, they didnot carry it out. It was conducted by myself.

137. At whose instance was this survey undertaken?—At the Chief Surveyor's originally. Of
course, I was glad to join in any scheme of that nature.

138. Chairman.] You think eight months was too long to devote to that survey, having regard to
the period of three years over which your agreementextended. Were you engaged in any topographical
work ?—I desiredthatmy time should be fullyoccupied in doing something. Ido not think I occupied
any time unduly in topographical work.

139. It is not whether there was more time occupied in topographical work, but whether the
results, as to the topographical information of the country, were of material service to theProvince ?—
Very ; but I think they have been somewhat overlooked.

140. Then there was a valuable residue of work, beyond what was otherwise chargeable to the
Province in connection with any expedition?—I may state that an expedition wasrecently sent out to
the same place by the Province, but they were unable to overtake the work. The Superintendent was
accompanied by a special reporter, and the reporter said it was unnecessary to go into any report, as the
particulars of the country were correctly contained in my report. I think that expedition was thrown
away, except as a means of again attracting attention to the district.

141. Mr. Sail.] Youwere engaged in another work, were you not, in connection with the New
Zealand Exhibition in Dunedin ? Had you anything to do with that?—I had a great deal.

142. How ?—I found that I was appointed one of the Commissioners. The Superintendent was
President, and the members of the Provincial G-overnment members of the Board, and I think they
were in thebest position to judgeof my work, although I did not approve of having an Exhibition on
that scale at that period of the existence of Otago. I was glad of it personally, as it gave mo an
opportunity of seeing my collections, made during the period I was in Otago, and which were never
unpacked until November, 1864. I had previously made application for a Museum, or place in which
might be arranged the various specimens. I felt that any statement I made in this Colony would be
taken only upon my own word if I did not leave certain databehind me. I was desirousto have some
substantial proofof my services, but, owing to someopposition, thatMuseum was not built. It was not
until theExhibition that Ihad an opportunity of seeing the specimens from the time they werecollected.
I arrangedthem, describedand catalogued them, and handedover a complete catalogueto theProvincial
Government. I have not examined them since until eighteen months ago. I understand they were
completely lost sight of, having been allowed to remain stored in somestore, the Government having to
pay about £90 on them.

143. Chairman.] Are there duplicates of all the specimens in the Museum here?—Certainly not.
I think there were 550 duplicates, all of which were obtained by correspondence with the Provincial
Government long after I left Otago. I took nothing with me that was the property of theProvince.,
These were obvious duplicates that Iwanted for further research.

144. What was thenumber of specimens in the Museum?—About 5,000, including sjiecimens in
every branch ofnaturalhistory. There were only 550 duplicates. Those which were sent to Wellington
by the trustees of the Otago Museum would not constitute a Museum.

145. Was it the tenth or the fifth part?—It was not the fiftieth part, in value. The museum that
I left behind gave a complete exposition of every branch of natural history in the Province, and even
far beyond what was in the Province alone, accompanied by a catalogue. Along with these were maps,
a complete geological map, full details and analyses, with special examinations of the minerals, ores,
rocks, and fibrous materials, all of which I left in Dunedin. Such a thing as a special detailed report
wouldbe impossible, without constant reference to such a collection during its preparation. After the
experience I had when I sent in my first report 1 did nothing more than put the work into shape.
Within three months after my arrival I went all over the goldfields, to which, togetherwith the various
coal fields, my special attention was drawn. I took the trouble of preparing a report in the clearest
form—that of a section and explanatory notes. That was ordered by the Superintendent, Major
Richardson, to be printed and published for public information. It was sent to the SurveyDepart-
ment, but has never beenpublished to this day.

146. Mr. Hall.~\ Did you send in any others ?—I sent in many more afterwards. I sent in a
long special report of the expedition to the West Coast. I sent in full departmental reports, giving
the results. These have been published, and a great many scientific documents from that work have
also been made public. My printed reports occupy over 100 pages of the Provincial Government
Gazettes.

147. Of what nature was the report which you made out three months after your arrival?—
It was a section, showing the relations of the different rock formation in the Tuapeka District, and
pointing out how a proper search for gold should be conducted. It showed the source of the gold,
though more by inference than by observation ; but my views have been borne out by extended
workings.

148. What is your answerto tne statementof the Superintendent, that you have not furnished a
general report according to the terms of your agreement?—I do not see anything about a general
report in the agreement ?

149. Chairman.'] You consider that you have complied with the agreement ?—lt wouldhave been
more satisfactory to me if, after leaving the Province, I had gone to England and furnished afull and
particular report. A great portion ofmy work is embodied inthe English translation of Hochstetter's
work on New Zealand, and to have commenced my. work here I should have had to work at great
disadvantage. I had nobooks of reference, nor any scientific friends to consult. I had every drawback
to contend with to prevent my publishing a work in a creditable style. I should also have hadto extend
my knowledge, as some of the conclusions I arrived at in Otago did not hold good in respect to the
rest of the Colony. Such a work as I contemplated wouldhavebeenfor the benefit of the whole Colony;
whereas, if I had furnished it at that time, it would have been comparatively useless after the lapse of
some years.
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150. I conclude that, from the absence of scientific works of reference and other circumstances,
if you had attempted such a wort you felt you would not be doing justice to your subject ?—Yes ;
and to the Province.

151. Then there has been simply a postponement of a tiling that will inevitably be done ?—
Certainly. If it is within the duty of the Committee I should wish to explain the plan of operations.
A general sketch map [produced] will be published shortly, and with thatwillbe a complete description
of the general features of the geology of the whole Island. At the same time, lam completing aset of
maps in sheets, giving full details of the geology of the country, and the result of investigations since
1864. In that way the detailed geology of the whole countrywill be published. These will include
Hochstetter's map, and all other sources of information. It is evidentthat, at the time, the Province
of Otago was not able to publish that map that I supplied to them, or they would have done so long
ago. A geological survey, like all other surveys, culminates in a map, and not in a report.

152. Then you were not in a position to do the whole work at the time?—I have stated so.
153. Mr. Hall.] That map of Otago was handed over to the Province, accompanied by sections

on a very large scale, showing the relative position of eachrock formation in the Province?—Tes; it
was so executed as to bo easily understood by the most ordinary comprehension; but I did not see
the section or the particular specimens when I was in Otago last.

154. Have you ever been applied to for any particular report ?—After the termination of my
agreement, I promised a full report in a popular form, and sent in a sketch of its contents. A great
deal of this report has been published in other forms, but the report itself has not been published for
the reasons given in the attached memo. I was asked for that report in October, 1865.

155. Mr. Maeffltrlane.] Has there been any complaint of your not having fulfilled your agree-
ment ?—No.

156. Mr. Peacock.'] Did you give notice when leaving?—I am not sure. I may not have given
notice, but I am sure the Provincial Government were quite aware of my intention, as there was cor-
respondence on the subject of the disposal of the collections.

157. You werefully engaged the whole term of your agreement?—I didall I could in the time
to render information available for the purposesrequired.

158. Mr. Stevens.] And the work was practically complete?—No ; the time was not at all enough
to complete it. When the matter was submitted to Sir Roderick Murchison, I remember he said that
after five years I would then bo able to commence a complete geological survey of the country. My
own opinion is, and thatof many other scientific men, that I did not only what was expected of me, but
a great deal more.

159. Mr. Macffarlane.] Did you sign the agreement in Edinburgh ?—Yes.
160. Mr. Sail.] Have you sent specimens and furnished informationon the subject of your survey

to persons in the mother country ? A complaint of something to that effect has been made to the
Committee?—Well, I may say that in London the scientific bodies levy what 1 may call a black mail
upon us, expecting us to send not only specimens but our ideas and views on the subject of our re-
searches ; but I have carefully refrained from doing so when not in the interest of the Colony. So
much so, indeed, that I fear that I have got into their black books. I have sent some letters and
papers, but as to sending them my results Systematically, I have, as I said,refrained from doing so. I
have sent home papers, but they were in reference to topics of general interest. I, of course, sent
home information to the Geological Society, in which I described the system of classification adopted in
the map.

161. Mr. Macffarlane.] With regard to the instruments, what became of them afterwards?—They
were my own. I took them with me. They have been used for the General Governmentservice since.

162. This agreement prevents you going into the service of any other Government. Were the
provincial authorities aware of your engagementwith the GeneralGovernment ?—it wascertainly with
their knowledge. 1 did not think that it was necessary to get their formal sanction.

168. Chairman. | You have toldus that, long before the termination of your engagement with the
Province of Otago, you were arranging terms to enter the service of the General Government ?—Six
months before the Exhibition I was sent round to the several Provinces, and when I was in Auckland
some correspondence took place upon the subject of obtaining my services for the whole Colony. It
was with the Colonial Secretary of the time, Mr. Fox.

164. Was there any dissenton the part of the provincial authorities ? Were they aware of it ?—
At that time I was in constant communication with the Superintendent, Mr. Harris, and the various
members of the Executive. They knew all 1 was doing. In fact, Ido not remember very much about
this. If it comes to the letter of the agreement, it only precludes me from entering the service of any
other Provincial Government. In fact, that refers to the agreement that if I were engagedby any
other Province the Otago Government wererelieved from paying my return passage to England.

165. Mr. Hall.] Which they were obliged to do otherwise ?—Yes.
166. What would be the value of the work you have done in Otago to a generalGeological Survey

of New Zealand, supposing it to be incorporated as part thereof?—If Otago hands over all the plans
and sections which are yet unpublished, and retains the collections of specimens in the Museum, and
if proper allowance is made for the expenditure really for purposes not strictly connectedwith other
local purposes—surveys, and things of that kind not strictly geological—I think about £5,000.

167. Chairman.] Supposing these to be included as part of the results belonging to the Colony ?—
There are some results that couldnot be given over. For instance, the impetus given to the develop-
ment of certain gold fields,—the impetus given towards colonization in certain parts of the Province,—
these, and other results of a similar nature,could not be handed over, nor estimatedin money.

168. Mr. Peacock.] Supposing the work to be purely geological, what would be the value?—I
cannot at present say. 1 shall furnish it in writing.

169. Mr. Hall.] Will you also include your opinion of the value of the collection which Otago
retains?—If nothing wereknown of the geology of Otago, the formation of a collection of the same
extent,and embodying the same amount of informationin a practical way,could not be effectedfor less
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than it cost originally. With the knowledge nowpossessed, the formation of a similar collection would
be comparatively simple and inexpensive. It is impossible to place a value on such a collection. Thus,
the collection of plants or the herbarium, from containing so large a number of the plants front
which the original descriptions in Hooker's Handbook of the Hew Zealand Flora were drawn, must
always remain a standard herbarium, and especially for the Otago Province. It could not be
replaced if destroyed, and, therefore, cannot be valued. The same applies to the collection of
rocks and fossils, of which the descriptions, analyses, or figures, have been, or will be published.
Since reading the evidence of His Honor Mr. Macandrew and the Hon. Captain Eraser, I have
only to say that I received the greatest kindness and assistance duringmy three years' work in Otago,
to which I will always recur withpleasant recollections ; and, as was natural under the circumstances,
Inever grudged any personal exertion orpecuniary sacrifice to advance thowork. I did not look on
my connection with the Otago Government as ceasing when I left it, and I have always been ready to
advise and report on any matters when asked to do so. I had two assistants, in 1865-6 and 1868, at
work in the Province since I took charge of the general survey. They wore examining districts con-
cerning which my information was defective. The onlyapplication I have received for advice from the
Provincial Government during that period was in 1868, with regard to the likelihood of mining by
what is termed deep-sinking being successful in Otago. I gave great attention to the subject, but I
regret that I could notreport favourably. I think it would be very desirable to continue the survey
of the gold fields of Otago, as they have made great progress since my lastexamination j but it is only
a question of increasing the staff for tho purpose. The question of water supply is one for a mining
surveyor; and at one time there was an excellent and large staff of mining surveyors in Otago, and
their reports ought to furnish valuableinformation on thispoint. I have always thought it a loss to
observation which the Government Mining Surveyors possess. I am quite ready to make further inves-
tho country that I had not been empowered to direct, to some extent, the opportunities for geological
tigations and report upon the Otago Gold Eields, and specially as regards waterworks, when called on,
and to the extent of the means placed at the disposal of the department for the purpose. I shall be
exceedingly glad to see Mr. Ulrich's services secured for the Colony, but I think he would do more
work if in connection with the department, than if he had to find out everything for himself, as he
would start with theexperience we have acquired. He is a personal friend of my own, and was for
many years on Mr. Selwyn's staff in Victoria.
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APPENDIX.

No. 1.
Sir,— Wellington, 27th July, 1870.

Referring to my personal interview with you, and to the correspondence which passed between
the preceding Government and myself, on the subject of Otago being reimbursed by the Colony in
respect of the outlay which that Province has incurred in its Geological Survey, I would again respect-
fully solicit the attention of the Government to the fact that Dr. Hector's operations have cost the
Government of the Province upwards of £13,000.

Now that the services of Dr. Hector have been applied to the rest of the Colony, and that a very
large proportion of the cost of his staff is borne by Otago, it seems only fair that Otago should either
be relieved of any portion of the expense of the Colonial Survey, or that the past cost of the Otago
Provincial Survey should be borne by the Colony.

It must, I think, be obvious that there is a manifest injustice in practically compelling Otago not
only to survey its own territory at its own sole expense, but to bear, in addition, the lion's share of the
Geological Survey of the rest of the Colony.

I venture to hope, under all the circumstances of the case, that the amount in question, £13,000,
of which, if necessary, I am prepared to furnish full particulars, will be refunded.

I have, &c,
J. Macamdbew,

The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer, Wellington. Superintendent of Otago.

No. 2.
Sib,— Wellington, 9th August, 1870.

Adverting to my letter to you of 27th July ultimo, in respect of the amount expended by
the Provincial Government of Otago upon the Geological Survey of that portion of the Colony being
refunded, I have now to submit copy of agreement (enclosed herewith) between theProvincial Govern-
ment and Dr. Hector.

I desire to call the attention of the General Governmentspecially to articles 1 and 2 in said agree-
ment, and to request that directions maybe issued toDr. Hectorto theeffect that the Geological Survey
of Otago may be completed in terms of this agreement.

I have &c,
J. Macaxbeew,

The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer, Wellington. Superintendent of Otago.

Enclosure.
Minute of Agreement between James Crawford, junior, and John Auld, both Writers to the Signet,

Edinburgh, Agents in Great Britain for the Province of Otago, conform to power of attorney
in their favour by His Honor the Superintendent of the saidProvince, dated 16thMarch, and
registered in the books of Council and Session as a probative writ, 15th .November, 1855, in
favour of them and William Walter Cargill, of London, Esquire, and any one of them
(severally),and him jointly and severally on the one part, and James Hector, M.D., 1-3, Gate
Street, Lincoln Inn Fields, on the other part.

The saidparties, considering that the Provincial Council of the Province of Otago, being desirous of
being possessed of a Geological Survey of the said Province, direct the said Agents to make inquiries
regarding a suitable party for that purpose, and they having applied to Sir Roderick Murchison,
he recommended to them to obtain the services of the said James Hector, and accordingly the
said Supci'intendent and Provincial Council, onreport by the said Agents, empowered them to enter into
treaty and arrangements with him—and seeing that the said James Hector has agreed to undertake
to perform the said survey on theconditions afterspecified:

Therefore, the saidparties have contracted and agreed, and hereby contract and agree, as follows,
viz. :—

1. That the said James Hector shall devote his whole time and capabilities in making and
bringing to a completion, and furnishing the said Superintendent and Provincial Council with, an
accurate GeologicalSurvey of the said Province, and shall deliver the same, with all necessary plans,
sections, and others, to the said Superintendent of the said Province of Otago; said engagement to
continue for the period of threeyears from and after the Ist day of January, in the year 1 802 ; and he
shall from time to time, as ho maybe required, furnish to the said Superintendent reports of his
proceedings; it being declared that the said James Hector shall be allowed to conduct his examina-
tions of the Province in any manner he may deem best suited for a scientific geological reconnoisance,
subject, however, to the approval of the said Council and Superintendent in the matter of expenses ;
and the said James Hector shall also be entitled to publish the results of his investigation for general
scientific or geological purposes. "4
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2. That the said James Hector shall, at his own expense, supply all the instruments, tools, and
stationery of every kind, and all implements necessary in making said survey, which shall be of the
best and most modern description, and suitable for thepurpose.

3. That the said James Hector shall select an efficient assistant before leaving England, and shall
engage him for the period of three years, from Ist day of January, in the year 1862, who shall be
entirely under Dr. Hector's control, but shall receive the salary after mentioned from the said
Council and Superintendent, together with the necessary expenses, not exceeding £10, that may be
incurred by him in this country before leaving for Otago, in connection with the preparations for
the survey.

4. That the said Superintendent and his successors in office, and the said Provincial Council, shall
defray all their expenses of exj)loration and survey, and of maintenance when employed in the field,
along with the equipment of men, horses, and other necessaries.

5. That the said James Hector shall furnish, at the completion of the survey, specimens of all
minerals descriptive of the results of the investigation made in virtue hereof, and of the mineralogical
formation of the Province.

6. That the said .Tames Hector shall conform to any Ordinance or instructions to be passed by
the Superintendent and Provincial Council of the said Province, and anyrules or by-laws made in
pursuance thereof, regarding the said survey, declaringthat nothing in this article shall prejudice his
right to conduct his examinationof the Province in any manner he may deem best, as stipulated by
article first hereof.

7. That the said Superintendent and his foresaids, and the said Provincial Council, shall make
payment in Great Britain to the said James Hector, or his duly authorized attorney, of a
salary of £800 per annum. Declaring that in respect the said James Hector has been exclusively
occupied inrelation to the said survey since the Ist day of November last, said salary shall commence
to run from that date, and shall continue till the expiration of the aforesaidperiod of three years men-
tioned in article first, and it shall be payable in four equal instalments of £200, commencing the first
payment of the said salary as on the Ist day of February, 1862, for the quarter preceding, and so on
quarterly thereafter ; and they shall also make payment in greatBritain to the assistant to be engaged
by him as aforesaid,or his duly authorized attorney, of a salary of £300 per annum for the foresaid
(period) period of threeyears, mentionedin articlethird, payable in four equal instalments of £75, com-
mencing the first payment thereof on the first day of April, 1862,for the quarter preceding; and the
said salaries shall continue to be payable to the saidparties respectively during the continuance of the
engagement, and so long as they shall continue faithfullyto discharge the duties incumbent on them
by this agreement, but no longer.

8. That the said Superintendent and the said Provincial Council shall also pay the expenses of
the passages of the said James Hector and his assistant as follows, viz : As regards the outward
passage, £150 for that of the said James Hector, with power to him to proceed overland via Mel-
bourne,for thepurposeof visiting theAustralian goldmines ; and £70 for that ofhisassistant; andthey
shall further pay tie direct homewardpassages of the said James Hector and his assistant; but in the
event of their being engaged, after the expiry of the said period of three years, in a way similar to the
present engagement,by any of the other Provincial Governments in New Zealand, they or either of
them who shall be so engagedshall notbe entitled tobe paid their or his homepassageby the said Superin-
tendent of Otago. Providing and declaring, that it shall not be in the power of the said James Hector
or his said assistant to accept of any engagementfrom any of the said Provincial Governments during
the currency of this agreement, even although such engagements are not to commence till the expiry
of this agreement,without givingsix weeks'notice in writing to the said Superintendent,and, if required
by him, shall be bound to continue their services to said Superintendent in preference to the other
Provincial Governments on equal terms, or on such terms as may be agreed on.

9. Both parties bind and oblige themselves to perform their respective parts of the premises to
each other under the penalty of£500 sterling, to be paid by the party failing to theparty performing,
or willing to perform, over and above performance.

In witness whereof.

No. 3.
Memokandum respecting the Engagement of Dr. Hector with the Provincial Government of Otago.
In December, 1861,Dr. Hector agreed with Messrs. Crawford and Auld to make a GeologicalSurveyof
the Province, and deliver the same, with all necessary plans, sections, &c, to the Superintendent; the
survey to be completed in three years from the Ist January, 1862. Also to furnish, periodically,
reports of his proceedings.

Dr. Hector arrived in the Province in March, 1862, and was engaged in the survey until March,
1865, occasionally during that period furnishing the Grovernment with reports as to his progress.

At that date, the period of his agreement having previously expired, he left the service of the
Province for that of the General Government, and has neveryetfurnished the Superintendent with the
result of the survey.

Under the last clause in his agreement Dr. Hector is liable to apenalty of £500 for having failed
to carry out the terms thereof.

"W". A. Tolmie,
Dunedin, 20th August, 1870. Deputy Superintendent.

Statement of Expenditure on account of Geological Survey of the Province of Otago under
Dr. James Hectoe.

£ s. d.
Passage money of Dr. Hector and assistant ... ... ... 220 0 0
Salarypaid Dr. Hector ... ... ... ... ...3,153 6 8
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£ s. d.
Salary paid Assistants ... ... ... ... ... 3,779 1 4
Eeturn passage money allowed Mr. Wood ... ... ... 70 0 0
Instruments ... ... ... ... ■. ■ ■ ■ ■ 12176
Typical specimens ... ... . . ... ... ... 46 8 5
Equipment ofsurvey parties ... ... ... ... ... 1,614 6 8
Wages of labourers ... ... ... ... ... ... 611 11 11
Extra hands and Museum ... ... ... ... ... 258 15 5
Interest and exchange on drafts sent to London ... ... ... 41 1(5 2
Cartage, fuel, furniture, travelling expenses, &c. ... ... ... 352 2 5
Buildings ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 1,287 5 4
West Coast expedition ; fitting out " Matilda Hayes " and provisioning

party ... ... ... ... ... ... ..' 2,071 13 6
Belief to West Coastparty ... ... ... ... ... 371 11 8

13,890 17 0
A.LFBED E. OSWIN",

Provincial Treasury, Dunedin, 18th August, 1870. Sub-Treasurer.

No. 4.
Memorandum concerning the Geological Survey of Otago.

I left England, having engaged one assistant, Mr. Charles Wood, in January, 1862, and reached
Otago in April, from -which date the survey commenced, and continued for three years, until 30th
March, 1865. Mr. Wood, who was selected by the authorities at the School of Mines to relieve me of
the chemical and physical analyses, and the description, &c, of specimens, so as to allow me more time
for field work, arrived in Juno, 1862, but in bad health. After a few months leave of absence in Vic-
toria ho again attempted his work, but broke down ; and in. December, 1862, had to leave for
Melbourne, where he was employed in the Government Laboratory, for a few months, until his death.
Deprived of Mr. Wood's services, I had at first to engage assistants in the Colony and teach them
theirwork, in some cases, I regret to say, at a fruitless loss of time and money. I was at last fortunate
in getting a zealous, practical naturalist in Mr. Buchanan, who was engaged as draftsman in April,
1863, and who was of great assistance as a collector.

Mr. Skey, also, by assiduous application, soon became extremely useful in the Laboratory, and
relieved me of work in thatbranch. Mr. Gore, as clerk and meteorologist, completed my staff in
Otago, and the same gentlemen have been transferred to the General Government service.

The distribution of the work over the three years of the survey was as follows :—
1862.—During May, June, and July, examined the gold fields thenknown, and theEastern District

of the Province from the Mataura to Oamaru, and as far into the interior as the Dunstan Gorge. The
first results of this examination were communicated to the Government in the form of sections illus-
trativeof the structure and distributionof the formations in the eastern part of the Province, especially
as bearing on the value and nature of the auriferous and brown coal deposits; and also in a memo-
randum pointing out the manner of the distributionof the auriferous drifts, and warning the miners
against misdirecting their efforts by associatingthose drifts with the existing drainage systems.

In September and October I examined the districts in the neighbourhood of the Wanaka and
Wakatipu Lakes, and communicated a short report of my journey.

1863.—During January, February, and March, the mountains between tlie Wakatipu and Wanaka,
Lakes, the West Coast at Jackson's Bay, and the Greenstone Pass, were examined, and the general
results made public.

Erom April to the end of the year I was engaged in the South and West Districts, and on the West
Coast of the Province, of which expedition a report was published. During the same period the
districts I had examined during the previous yearwere again visited by Mr. Hacket, for the purpose of
collecting full sets of specimens according to the classification I had adopted.

1864.—-March, April, and May were devoted to thefurther examination of the Eastern Districts,
and in revisiting the gold fields. In June and July, visited the other Provinces of New Zealand as
Commissionerfor the Exhibition, with the sanction of the Provincial Government.

August, September, and part of October were spent in aboat expedition,in the course of which I
examined the South-east District of the Province, between the Molyneux and the Mataura Bivers.
During the remainder of theyear I wasprincipally occupied for the Exhibition, which was opened in
1865, and for the first time 1 was enabled to arrange the extensive collections in every branch of
natural history which had been accumulated during the progress of the survey. These collections,
numbering over 5,000 specimens, were fullyarranged and displayed in the Exhibition, with illustrative
maps, diagrams, and sections, and with descriptive information.

The results of the technical examinations of the various useful minerals and other substances, and
an abstract of all that had been ascertained respecting the value of the economic products of the Pro-
vinces, was published in the Jurors' Eeports, and Appendix thereto, the preparation ofwhich occupied
much of my time during the last throe months in Otago.

Erom so much time having been spent in the field, and from want of accommodation, the arrange-
ment and study of the collections, on which alone reports having practiaal value can be founded, had
fallen into arrear; and, since leaving Otago, I have felt it best, for the interest of the Colony, that I
should continuefurther field investigations before committing myself to final conclusions.

I have now examined, though only in a cursory manner, nearly every part of the Colony, and the
results, in the form of a complete catalogue of the Museum, together with a general geological map,
with explanations, are now in thepress. Ido not, however, consider that any part of the Colony has
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yet been sufficiently surveyed geologically,either for scientific or practical purposes; indeed, we are
now onlyapproaching a correct appreciation of thenatural classification of theformations which enter
into the structure of these Islands, and of the indications on which we may rely when investigating its
mineral resources.

James Hectob.

Note of Expenditure, by the Province of Otago, on account of Geological Survey.
I hate not the full data beside me for giving the detailed expenditure of the Provincial Government
for the Geological Survey, but the following, I believe, is nearly correct:—

£
Preliminary expenses ... ... ... ... ... ... 580
Krst year—Salaries ... ... ... ... ... ... 1,650

Expenses ... ... ... ... ... ... 790
Second year—Salaries ... ... ... ... ... ... 1,500

Expenses ... ... ... ... ... ... 6.15
Third year—Salaries ... ... ... ... ... ... 1,750

Expenses ... ... ... ... ... ... 665

£7,550
Extraexpense for West Coast expedition ... ... ... ... 1,162

£8,712
The above includes the preparation of collections for the Exhibition, and other extra expenses,

which being deducted, I consider would leave £6,500 that may be fairly considered as having been
expended by the Otago Government on the Geological Survey.

James Hectob.

Eemabks on the Amount of Expenditure for the Geological Survey of Otago.
I am not in a position to question this statement, and although I feel surprised at the amounts, I have
noreason to doubt that theyare correctly stated as they appear in the Treasury books.

Thereason for the discrepancybetween this amount and the memo. I submitted to the Committee
is in a great measure owing to the former containing sums that do not appear to me to be fairly
chargeable against the survey, and of these I append a note.

Although my attention has been onlyrequested to the statementofamount, I cannot refrain from
expressing my opinion that the memorandum attached to it does not correctly express either the letter
or spirit of the agreement I entered into.

I considered I was to work for three years at a geological rcconnoisance of Otago, and give the
results I had obtained. Even with our present increasedknowledge of the topography and geology of
the country, I could not single-handed make a geological survey in three years.

Owing to the excitedstate of the public mindat that period, from the constant fresh discovery of
gold fields, I had to push forward my explorations rapidly, and to employ assistants for thepurpose of
collecting information and specimens, and, in fact, my individual exertions were replaced by a depart-
ment. I cannot say that I was directed to do this, but I am sure that it would not have been satis-
factory to the Government or public at the time if I had not. At any rate, the result was beneficial to
the Province, as I never could have obtained the results I did in the time, had my operations been
limited to the scale originally contemplated.

It must be remembered that gold had not been discovered in Otago when it was first proposed to
me to undertake the survey. Under these circumstances, the expenditure was greatly beyond what I
previously estimated.

Items which should not be regarded as expendedfor the Survey.
£ s. d.

Mr. Wood ... ... ... ... ... ... 70 0 0
(This was presented to him when he was invalided, to enable him to seek

recovery in Australia,where he died.)
Instruments ... ... ... ... ... ... 12 17 (I

(I donot know of this, as Ibrought all instruments, &c, with me.)
Typical collections ... ... ... ... ... ... 46 8 5

(I was instructed to purchase them in London, as the nucleus of the
Museum.)

Extra hands and Museum ... ... ... ... ... 258 15 5
(I think must have been in connection with the Exhibition.)

Interest on drafts ... ... ... ... ... ... 41 16 2
Buildings ... ... ... ... ... ...1,287 5 4

(The buildings I had were mere sheds, except the Laboratory, which was
partly brick. This sum must include the Observatory and cottage.
All those buildings are still in use at the present time.)

West Coast expedition ... ... ... ... ... 700 0 0
(I cannot see how this sum is so large. The current expenses for hire of

vessel and wages was under£120 per monthfor eight months. Marine
stores, boat, &c., which were returned to the storekeeper, must be
charged without a drawback. The difference between what I know to
have been spent and the sum stated is about £700.)

Eelief to West Coast expedition ... ... ... ... 371 11 8
(I know nothing of this. I never wasrelieved, or everrequired it.)
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£ s. d.
Value of horses sold, furniture, fittings, &c, returned to the storekeeper, at least 400 0 0
Extra salaries ... ... ... ... ... ... 210 0 0

(Salary paid to meteorological observer, an office that existed before I came
to the country, and still is continued.)

Extra salary paid to myself for eighteen months, but not at my desire or
suggestion... ... ... ... ... ... 300 0 0

£3,698 14 6
James Hector.

No. 6.
Memoeakdum of Eeports, Maps, &c, relating to the Geological Survey of Otago, furnished by

Dr. Hector.
27th August, 1862.—Relativeto the distributionof Gold in the Province.—(Published.)
25th September, 1862.—Progress Report.—(Published.)
25th April, 1863.—Report of first Expedition to West Coast.'—(Published in newspapers.)
Bth June, 1863.—Progress of West Coast Expedition.—(Published.)
sth November, 1863.—Report of second West Coast Expedition.—(Published.)
13th April, 1864.—Progress Report, with full detailsrespecting the minerals, coals, fossils, plants,

&c, which had been discovered up to date.—(Published.)
21st October, 1864.—Progress Report.—(Published.)
Various official letters published in newspapers.
January, 1865.—Descriptive Catalogue of Geological and other Collections in the Exhibition.
sth February, 1866.—Various Papers in the Jurors' Reports, and Supplement to Class 1., which

gives a minute account of mineral and other natural productions of the Colony then known, and
especially of those in Otago.

Maps, fyc. (Unpublished.)
April, 1865.—Geological Map of the Province of Otago—scale 8 miles to mch—showing results

of reconnoisance survey up to date, and giving also a large amount of original topographical details.
{This map was specially compiled for the Geological Survey, as at that time no complete
topographical map of the Province was in existence.)

Map of the North-west District of the Province, showing the surface configuration, with special
relation to the opening of communicationwith the landfitted for settlement on the West Coast.

Ten Geological Sections illustrating the structure of the Province.
Seventeen large Sketches and Views illustrativeof the geological features of Otago scenery.

J. Hectoe.
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